
STANDARDS AND ETHICS COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Venue: Carlisle Room, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ 

Date: Tuesday, 3rd December, 2019
Time: 9.30 am
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 5 November 2019 1 - 2

4. Dispensation 3 - 10

5. Exclusion of Press and Public 

The Chair to move:
That under Section 100 (a) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item on the 
grounds that, if they were present, there could be disclosed to them exempt 
information as defined in the relevant paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the 
Act.

6. To consider Complaint 1 under the Council's Code of Conduct procedure 11 - 50

7. To consider Complaints 2 & 3 under the Council's Code of Conduct 
procedure 

51 - 84

Membership: Councillors David Banks (Chair), Ged McGrath (Deputy Chair), Graham Calvin, 
Sean Cullen, Joan Hully, Steven Morgan and Doug Wilson

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack





STANDARDS AND ETHICS COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2019

Present: Councillors David Banks, in the Chair; Graham Calvin, Joan Hully and Doug Wilson.

Officers: Sarah Pemberton (Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy 
(Monitoring Officer)), Clinton Boyce (Solicitor), Michaela Peet (Assistant Solicitor), 
Stephanie Shaw (Electoral and Democratic Services Manager) for items 1-4 only and 
Clive Willoughby (Democratic Services Officer).

SEC 19/24 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Steven Morgan.

SEC 19/25 Declarations of Interest 

No declarations were made at this meeting.

SEC 19/26 Minutes of the Meeting held on 17 September 2019 

RESOLVED:- that the minutes of the meeting held on 17 September 2019 be signed by the 
Chair as a correct record.

SEC 19/27 Constitution Changes 

Committee received an introduction and overview of the proposed review of the Council’s 
constitution from the Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy, before the 
Electoral and Democratic Services Manager took Members through the detail.

Members welcomed the review and the new format that made navigation easier.
A small number of minor amendments were suggested and would be incorporated before the 
document is presented to Council.

An update and amendment to the Scheme of Delegation was then considered which relates 
to delegation currently to Officers “to exercise the Council’s regulatory  and any associated 
management functions relating to: ( c ) Animal Welfare”

It was recommended that ‘( c ) Animal Welfare’ be removed from the current delegation and 
replaced with:-

“To grant, vary, enforce or suspend licences, registrations, authorisations and permits under 
the Animal Welfare Act 20069 and the Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving 
Animals)(England) Regulations 2018.”

And that the limitation on the exercise of the above reads:

“The power to refuse or revoke any licence, registration, authorisation or permit is delegated 
to the Licensing Committee.”

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



“A Matter may also be referred to the Committee where the delegated officer is minded to 
refer the decision for members’ consideration.”

RESOLVED:- that
a) the Standards and Ethics Committee recommend to Council that the proposed 

Constitution layout be approved,
b) the consequential changes made in Part 2- Articles 2, 9 and 11 and Part 3.10 be noted,
c) the proposed changes in Articles 2, 3, 5, 7 and 13 be recommended to Council for 

approval,
d) the Director of Corporate Services & Commercial Strategy receive delegated powers to 

be authorised to amend the Constitution accordingly to ensure regulatory compliance 
and process updates, including revisions for any necessary incidental or consequential 
changes be recommended to Council for approval.

e) The proposed update and amendment to the Scheme of Delegation, as stated above, 
be recommended to Council for approval.

SEC 19/28 Constitution Changes - Planning 

At the request of Council on 9 September 2019, Committee considered an amendment to the 
Planning section of the Council’s constitution.

A supplementary report, with a suggested protocol, was circulated to Members in advance of 
the meeting.

During the discussion that followed, minor amendments were suggested.

RESOLVED:- that
a) the suggested protocol be accepted, subject to the minor amendments suggested, and
b) the amended protocol be referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting 

on 21 November 2019, and then Council on 2 December 2019 with a recommendation 
that it be approved.

The Meeting closed at 11.35 am 

Chair

Page 2



Standards and Ethics Committee: 03/12/19
 

COUNCIL TAX AND BUSINESS RATES – GENERAL DISPENSATION TO ALL 
MEMBERS OF COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL

Portfolio holder: Not applicable: non-Executive function;
Lead officer: Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate Resources 

and Commercial Strategy; and
Report author: Clinton Boyce, Solicitor.

Recommendation:       That (a) the monitoring officer be authorised to grant 
                                        a  dispensation to all members and the elected mayor 
                                        upon request to enable them to participate in the 
                                        setting of an allowance, payment or indemnity to 
                                        members and the elected mayor on the ground set out 
                                        in section 33(2)(a) of the Localism Act 2011;  
         
                                        (b) the monitoring officer be authorised to grant a 
                                        dispensation to all members and the elected mayor 
                                        upon request to enable them to participate in  the 
                                        setting of the council tax or a precept, the local 
                                        council tax reduction scheme and the business rates 
                                        reduction scheme provided that she is satisfied that 
                                        the grounds set out in section 33(2) of the Localism Act 
                                        2011 apply once she knows the number of members 
                                        affected; and

                                        (c)  that the form of dispensation be in the form 
                                        attached at Appendix 1.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 If a member has a beneficial interest in a property in Copeland or a 
licence to occupy such then s/he has a registrable pecuniary interest. If 
the Council then imposes a levy (i.e. council tax or business rates) on 
that property then strictly speaking, by section 31 of the Localism Act 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



2011, s/he is prohibited from participating in that decision. In respect of 
the members’ remuneration scheme all members benefit from it.

1.2 Strictly speaking section 31 of the Localism Act 2011 is engaged in that 
the matters are pecuniary in nature and the setting of the items referred 
to in the recommendation above relate to such pecuniary matters.

1.3 The Council has previously given a general dispensation for all members 
for the term of office. The Audit and Governance Committee on the 10th 
November 2016 authorised the monitoring officer to grant a 
dispensation to all members and the elected mayor upon request for the 
matters set out above. Previously the monitoring officer has been 
granted authority but only where it is impracticable to first refer the 
matter to the Committee. Amendments to the constitution approved by 
Council on the 19th November 2019 delegate to this Committee ‘to agree 
a scheme for dispensations under section 33 of the Localism Act and to 
determine any applications for dispensations’.

2. REQUEST FOR DISPENSATION

2.1 Section 33 states:

“33  Dispensations from section 31(4)

(1) A relevant authority may, on a written request made to the proper 
officer of the authority by a member or co-opted member of the 
authority, grant a dispensation relieving the member or co-opted 
member from either or both of the restrictions in section 31(4) in 
cases described in the dispensation.

(2) A relevant authority may grant a dispensation under this section 
only if, after having had regard to all relevant circumstances, the 
authority—

(a) considers that without the dispensation the number of 
persons prohibited by section 31(4) from participating in any 
particular business would be so great a proportion of the 
body transacting the business as to impede the transaction 
of the business,

Page 4



(b) considers that without the dispensation the representation  
of different political groups on the body transacting any 
particular business would be so upset as to alter the likely 
outcome of any vote relating to the business,

(c) considers that granting the dispensation is in the interests of 
persons living in the authority's area,

(d) if it is an authority to which Part 1A of the Local Government 
Act 2000 applies and is operating executive arrangements, 
considers that without the dispensation each member of the 
authority's executive would be prohibited by section 31(4) 
from participating in any particular business to be transacted 
by the authority's executive, or

(e) considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a 
dispensation.

(3) A dispensation under this section must specify the period for which 
it has effect, and the period specified may not exceed four years.

(4) Section 31(4) does not apply in relation to anything done for the 
purpose of deciding whether to grant a dispensation under this 
section”.

2.2 It is normal for a large number of members to be affected. All in respect 
of the remuneration package; most in respect of council tax; several in 
respect of business rates. It is likely that grounds (a), (b) and (c) in 
section 33(2) apply.

3. RECOMMENDATION

Members are asked to consider whether a dispensation should again be 
given to all members of Copeland. The draft dispensation is attached at 
Appendix 1 to this report. If agreed in principle the monitoring officer 
will grant a request in respect of members’ allowance where all 
members and the mayor have an interest. In respect of council tax, etc. 
she will be delegated with authority to grant the request assuming the 
number of members affected are such as to engage the grounds set out 
in section 33(2) which is likely to be the case.

Page 5



4.0 Statutory officer comments

4.1 Legal/monitoring officer:  Legal comments are included in the report as 
appropriate. 

4.2 Section 151 officer:  No financial issues arise.

4.3 Policy framework considerations: No such issues arise as the matter 
relates to the determination of complaints made in accordance with the 
Localism Act 2011.

4.4 Equality considerations: No such issues appear to arise from the 
complaints so far.

APPENDICES

1 Draft dispensation.

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Document is Restricted

Page 11

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 55

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 5 November 2019
	4 Dispensation
	Appendix 1 - Form of Dispensation

	6 To consider Complaint 1 under the Council's Code of Conduct procedure
	Appendix 1 - Complaint - redacted version
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5

	7 To consider Complaints 2 & 3 under the Council's Code of Conduct procedure
	Complaint 2 - Redacted version
	Complaint 3 - redacted version


